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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Members of the Board of Education 
Bath County School District 
Owingsville, Kentucky 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bath County 
School District (the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or enor. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opm10ns on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the 
Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits in the Auditor Responsibilities and State 
Compliance Requirements sections contained in the Kentucky Public School Districts' Audit Contract 
and Requirements. Those standards require that we plan and perfo1m the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
e1Tor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

Pikeville, KY Cold Spring, KY Cincinnati, OH 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements refe1Ted to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bath County School District as of June 30, 
2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the Special Revenue Fund for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis information on pages 6 through 9 and the Schedule of 
District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Pension Contributions on 
pages 43 through 46 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information ih accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opm10ns on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Bath County School District's basic financial statements. The combining 
and individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code o.f Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Un[form Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining 
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and individual non-major fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 19, 
2017, on our consideration of Bath County School District's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with ce1iain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial repo1iing or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

1<~~~~1 PsC 
Ashland, Kentucky 
October 19, 2017 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
OWINGSVILLE, KENTUCKY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD & A) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

As management of the Bath County School District (the "District"), we offer readers of the District's 
financial statements this nan-ative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with additional information found within the body of the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The beginning cash balance for all funds of the District, excluding agency funds, was 
approximately $5,423,966 and the ending balance was approximately $5,641,079, an 
increase of approximately $217,113 for the year primarily due to the timing of receipts 
and disbursements. 

• The General Fund had $15,783,170 in revenue, which consisted primarily of the State 
program (SEEK), and property, utilities, and motor vehicle taxes. Excluding interfund 
transfers, there was $16,258,041 in General Fund expenditures. 

• Bonds are issued as the District renovates facilities consistent with a long-range 
facilities plan that is established with community input and in keeping with Kentucky 
Department of Education (KDE) stringent compliance regulations. The District's total 
debt decreased by $909,218 during the cun-ent fiscal year. 

• Net pension liabilities required to be recorded under GASB No. 68 increased during the 
year. Non-professional staff members are covered by the Kentucky County Employee 
Retirement System. Under this system, the District's share of the pension liability was 
$5,619,137 as of June 30, 2016, which represents an increase of $814,679 from the 
June 30, 2015 balance of $4,804,458. The Kentucky Teachers Retirement System 
covers the District's professional staff members. The District's allocated pension 
liability as of June 30, 2016 was $80,308,734, which represents an increase of 
$17,336,040 from the June 30, 2015 balance of $62,972,694. However, this pension 
liability is the responsibility of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial 
statements. The District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report 
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues 
and expenses are repo1ied in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods. 
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The g vemment-wide financial statements outli_ne functions of the District that are principally 
supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (government activities). The 
governmental activities of the District i.nclude instruction, support services, operation and maintenance 
of plant, student h·ru1sportation and operation of 11011-instructi nal services. Fixed assets and related 
debt are also supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The government-wide financial 
statements can be found on pages IO and 11 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. This is a state mandated 
uniform system and cha1t of accow1ts for all Kentucky public school districts utilizing the MUNIS 
adminish·ative software. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, prop1ietary funds and .fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are trust funds established 
by benefactors to aid in student education welfare and teacher support. The primary proprietary fund 
is our food service operations. All other activities of the District are included in the governmental 
funds. 

The basic fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 through 22 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the governm nt-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements can be found on pages 23 - 42 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net position may serve over time as a useful wdicator of a government's financial position. In the case 
of the District assets exceeded liabilities by approximately $10.1 million as of June 30, 2017. 

The largest portion of the District's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and 
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment and constructioll in 
progress), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its sh1dents; consequently, these assets are not available for 
futw·e spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since 
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The District s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results 
of activities the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the 
depreciation of capital assets. 

Net Position for the period ending June 30, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 
Ctment Assets $ 5,949,764 $ 5,985,651 
NoncuITent Assets 26,895.127 27,340,971 

Total Assets 32,844.891 33J26,622 

Deferred Outflows 1,943,011 1,319,584 

CmTent Liabilities 2,891,552 2,870,045 
NoncuITent Liabilities 21,832.530 21,987,684 

Total Liabilities 24,724.082 24,857,729 

Net Position -
Net investment in capital assets 10 042,511 9,284 728 
Restricted 1,114,128 940 584 
Unrestricted (1,092,819) (436.835) 

Total Net Position $ l0 ,063.820 $. 2)88~477 
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Comments on Budget Comparisons 

• The District's total governmental funds revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
20 17. net of interfund transfers and lease and bond proceeds were $21 ,013,694, 
compared with $20 649 737 in 2016. This increase is primarily a result of an increase 
in property tax and grant fund ing in the current year. 

• Afier adjustments for contingency, the General fund budget compared to actual 
expenditmes varied modestly from line item to line item with the ending actual balance 
being $1.5 million less than budget or approximately 11 %. 

• The total cost of all programs and services for governmental fw1ds was $21,390,639, 
compared with $20 84 7 592 in 2016. The increase is primarily a result of an increase in 
spending on construction projects. 

The following table presents a summary of all governmental activities and business-type 
activities revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, with comparison to 
2016. 

2017 2016 
Revenues: 

Local Revenue Sources $ 3,673 594 $ 3,613,538 
State and Federal Revenue Sources 24,43 0,684 21,149,073 

Total Revenues 28,1 04.278 24,762,61 l 

Expenses: 
Instruction 15,754,943 13,920,402 
Student Support Services 1,909,061 1,398,415 
Instructional Support 813,350 608,688 
District Administration 1,168,229 1,095,519 
School Administration 1,541,009 1,131,431 
Business and Other Support Services 573,328 420,223 
Plant Operations 2,186,178 1,869,613 
Student Transportation 1,330,437 1,307,171 
Food Service Operations 1,575,748 1,645,314 
Child Care Services 187,386 151,805 
Community Services 350,800 346,821 
Debt service 438,466 580,903 

Total Expenses 27,828.935 24.476,305 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenses $ 275,343 $ 286,306 

Governmental Funds Revenue 

The majority of revenue was derived from state funding making up 75% and federal funding of 9% of 
total revenue. Local revenues make up 16% of total revenue (15% in 2016). 

District-Wide Support Allocation 

District-wide support services expenses were Transportation 6%, Maintenance & Operations 10%, and 
Business Functions 3%. 
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Capital Assets 

At U1e end of June 30, 2017, the Districts investmenL in capital assets f r its governmental and 
business-type activities was $26,895,127, representing a decrease of $445, 44 net of depreciation, 
from the prior year. Renovations at Bath County High School were stil l ongoing as of June 30, 2017. 

Debt Service 

At year-end, the District had approximately $17 .5 million in outstanding debt, compared to $18.4 
million last year. The District continues to maintain favorable debt ratings from Moody's and 
Standard & Poor's. 

Budgetary Implications 

In Kentucky the public school fiscal year is July 1 - June 30; other programs, i.e. some federal operate 
on a different fiscal calendar, but are reflected in the District overall budget. By law the budget must 
have a minimum 2% contingency. The District adopted a budget with approximately $538,929 in 
contingency (3.29%). The general fund cash balance for beginning the next fiscal year is $3,617,417. 

Results of the current fiscal year and recent historical trends for the District were taken into account 
when preparing the subsequent year budget. No significant changes in revenue or expense items are 
foreseeable. The District's tax rates and tax base remain effective ly tJ1e same. The District has 
assessed and considered underlying economical and funding factors at the federa l state, and local 
levels and other non-financial areas including demographics, local economy and risk of loss of student 
population that may have a significant impact on the financial statements when preparing subsequent 
year budgets. 

Questions regarding this report should be directed to the Superintendent or to the Finance Officer at 
(606) 674-6314. 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE30,2017 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,661,875 $ 979,204 
Due from other funds 2,929 

Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncollectibles ): 

Taxes 177,020 

Other 1,762 12,767 
Intergovernmental 85,844 24,322 

Inventories 4,041 

Capital assets, not being depreciated 1,042,008 

Capital assets, being depreciated, net 25,441,065 412,054 

Total assets 31 41 2,503 1,432,388 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred savings from refunding bonds 562,989 

Deferred outflows - pension related 1,144,501 235,521 
Total deferred outflows of resources I 707 490 235,521 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 20,812 

Deferred revenue 342,216 

Accrued salaries and benefits 955 ,363 

Due to other funds 2,929 
Portion due or payable within one year: 

Debt obligations 1,462,724 

KSBIT payable 15,982 

Interest payable 91,526 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 4,782,543 836,594 
Portion due or payable after one year: 

Debt obligations 15,952,881 

KSBIT payable 47,947 

Accrued sick leave 212,565 

Total liabilities 23,884,559 839,523 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 9,630,457 412,054 

Restricted for: 
Capital projects 697,796 

Other purposes 416,332 

Unrestricted ( 1,092,819) 
Total net position $ 9,235,434 $ 828 386 

The accompanying notes to financ ial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
- IO -

Total 

$ 5,641,079 
2,929 

177,020 
14,529 

110,166 
4,041 

1,042,008 
25,853,119 
32,844,891 

562,989 
1,380,022 
I 943,011 

20,812 
342,216 
955,363 

2,929 

1,462,724 
15,982 
91,526 

5,619,137 

15,952,881 
47,947 

212,565 
24,724,082 

10,042,511 

697,796 
416,332 

(1,092,819) 
$ 10,063,820 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Program Revenues 
Operating Capita l 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental 
Functions/Progr:tms ~ enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities 
Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

Instruction $ 15,754,943 $ $ 6,772,306 $ $ (8,982,637) 
Support services: 

Students 1,909,061 252,444 125,949 ( I ,530,668) 
Instructional staff 813,350 538,507 (274,843) 
District administration 1,168,229 21,268 (1,146,961) 
School administration 1,541,009 ( 1,541,009) 
Business and other support services 573.328 (573,328) 
Operation and maintenance of plant 2,186,178 27,862 (2,158,316) 
Student transportation 1,330,437 42,758 ( I ,287 ,679) 
Food service operations 4,528 (4,528.0000) 
Community services 350,800 314,156 (36,644) 

Debt service-interest expense 438.466 I ,917.135 1,478,669 
Total governmental activities 26.070.329 252,444 7.842.806 1,917,135 ~057.944) 

Business-type activities: 
Food service 1,571,220 77,255 1,613,867 
Child Care 187.386 I 15. 148 62,717 

Total business-type activities 1.758.606 192,403 1.676.584 
Total primary government $ 27,828.935 $ 444,847 $ 9,5 I 9,390 $ 1.917.135 $ C 16.057.944) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied liir general purposes $ 2,060,470 
Motor vehicle 307,939 
Utilities 592,321 

lnlergovernmenla.l revenues: 
State 12,994,159 

lnveslment earnings 175,982 
Gain on sale of assets 5,472 
Other local revenues 85.576 

Total general revenues and transfers 16.221.9 I 9 

Change in net posilion 163,975 

Net position, June 30, 2016 9,071,459 

Net posuion. June 30. 2017 $ 9,235,434 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part or this statement. 

-II-

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

$ $ (8,982,637) 

(1,530,668) 
(274,843) 

(1,146,961) 
( 1 ,541 ,009) 

(573,328) 
(2,158,316) 
(1,287,679) 

(4,528.0000) 
(36,644) 

1,478,669 
(16,057.944) 

I 19,902 119,902 

(9.521) (9,521) 

I 10.381 110,381 
$ I 10.381 $ (15,947,563) 

$ $ 2,060,470 
307.939 
592.321 

12,994,159 
987 176,969 

5,472 
85.576 

987 16,222.906 

111,368 275,343 

717,018 9.788,477 

s 828.386 s 10,063.820 



Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 

Due from other funds 

Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncol lectibles ): 

Property taxes 

Other 

Intergovernmental - state 
Total assets $ 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 
Accrued salaries and benefits 

Deferred revenue 
Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 

Restricted 
Committed 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 

BAHi COllNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FllNDS 
JllNE 30, 2017 

Special 

General Revenue FSPK 

Fund Fund Fund 

3,617,417 $ 263,073 $ 603,770 

2,929 

177,020 

1,762 

6,399 79,445 

3,805,527 $ 342,518 $ 603,770 

6,010 $ 302 $ 

955,363 
342,216 

961,373 342,518 

603,770 

71,796 

2,772,358 
2,844,154 603,770 

3,805,527 $ 342,518 $ 603,770 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 177,615 

$ 177,615 

$ 14,500 

14,500 

94,026 

69,089 

]63,115 

$ 177,615 

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
- 12 -

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 4,661,875 

2,929 

177,020 

1,762 

85,844 

$ 4,929,430 

$ 20,812 

955,363 
342,216 

1,3 18,391 

697,796 

140,885 

2,772,358 

3,611 ,039 

$ 4,929,430 



BATII COllNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF HIE BALANCE SHEET- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
,JUNE 30, 2017 

Fund balances-total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are ditlerent 
becaLJse: 

Capital assets LJsed in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Savings from refunding bonds are not available to pay current 
period expenditures and therefore, not reported in the funds. 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are 
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Deferred differences in pension experience 
Defimed pension investment earnings 
Deferred changes in pension assumptions 
Deferred changes in proportionate share ofliability 
Deferred pension contributions 

Certain other liabilities are not due and payable in the current 
period and therefore, not reported in the funds as follows: 

Accrued interest payable 
Net pension liability 

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, KS BIT payable, and accrued 

sick leave, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, 
are not reported in the ti.Inds. 

Net position of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
- I J -

20.49 I 
435,562 
248,637 
132.660 
307,151 

(91,526) 
(4,782,543) 

$ 3,611,039 

26.483,073 

562,989 

1,144,501 

(4,874,069) 

(17.692,099) 

$ 9.235,434 



UATII COl'NTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT 01' REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN HIND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
l'OR TIIE YEAR ENDED .JUNE JO, 2017 

Specinl 
General Revenue FSPK 

Fund Fund Fund 
Revenues: 

From local sources: 
Taxes -

Property $ 1,569.506 $ $ 490,964 

Motor vehicles 307,939 
Utilities 592,321 

Interest incorne 7.963 148,012 

Other local revenues 10.088 72,204 

Intergovernmental - State 12,917,427 1.000,116 972,837 

Intergovernmental - Indirect federal 1,626,127 
Intergovernmental - Direct federal 252,444 

Total revenues 15,657,688 2.846,459 1.463,801 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction 9,379,467 1,810,578 

Support services: 
Students 1,231,665 125,949 

Instructional staff 176,536 538,507 
District administration 939,227 21,268 

School administration 1,056,644 
Business and other support services 413,787 
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,519,205 27,862 
Student transportation 1,286,570 42,758 

Food service operation 4,528 

Community services 35.666 314,156 
Facilities acquisition and construction 
Debt service 219,274 

Total expenditures 16,2::iS 041 2,885.606 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures (600,353) (39,147) 1,463,801 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Capital lease proceeds 119,529 

Bond proceeds 
Payment to escrow agent 
Proceeds from sale ofcquiprnent 5.953 

Transfers in 300,000 39,147 

T ransfcrs out (39,147) (l, 126,008) 
Total other financing sources and uses 386,335 39.147 (l , l::l6.00S) 

Net change in fund balances (214,018) 337,793 

Fund balances, June 30, 2016 3,058,172 265,977 

Fund balances, June 30, 2017 $ 2.844 . 154 $ $ 603,770 

The nccompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral pa11 of this statement. 
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Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 

20,007 
75,488 

944,298 

1,039,793 

87,614 

228 
11,716 

2,410 

502,859 
1,642,165 
2.246,992 

(1,207,199) 

6,445,000 
(6,380,758) 

1,114,302 
(288,294) 

890,250 

(316,949) 

480,064 

$ 163,115 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 2,060,470 
307,939 
592,321 
175,982 
157,780 

15,834,678 
1,626,127 

252,444 
21,007,741 

11,277,659 

1,357,842 
726,759 
960,495 

1,056,644 
413,787 

1,547,067 
1,331,738 

4,528 
349,822 
502,859 

1.861,43!7 
21 ,390,639 

(3 82 ,898) 

119,529 
6,445,000 

(6,380,758) 
5.953 

1,453,449 
( 1,453 ;1-4 9) 

189 724 

(193,174) 

3,804,213 

$ 3,611,039 



BATl-l COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CI-IANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay 
Adjustment to gain on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 

Generally, expenditures recognized in the fund financial statements are limited 
to only those that use current financial resources, but expenses are 

813,006 
(481) 

(1,243,517) 

recognized in the statement of activities when they are incurred for the following: 
Long-term portion of accrued sick leave 
Interest payable 
Capitalized savings from bond refundings amortization expense 
Amortization of bond discounts 

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures when paid. 
However, in the Statement of Activities, pension expense is the cost of benefits 
earned adjusted for member contributions, the recognition of changes 
in deferred outflows and inflows or resources related to pensions, and 
investment experience. 

KTRS on-behalf revenues 
KTRS on-behalf contributions 
CERS contributions 
Pension expense 

Bond and capital lease proceeds, including related premiums and discounts, 
are recognized as revenues in the fund financial statements, but are increases 
in liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Capital lease proceeds 
Bonds and refunding bonds issued 
Premiums and discounts on bonds and refunding bonds issued 
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent 

Governmental funds do not report the effect of gains or losses on 
refunding of debt, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities. 

Bond and capital lease payments are recognized as expenditures of current 
financial resources in the fund financial statements but are reductions of 
liabilities in the statement of net position. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

5,221,091 
(5,221,091) 

24,444 
437,783) 

(119,529) 
(6,445,000) 

15,535 
5,980,000 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ (193,174) 

$ 

(430,992) 

(37,722) 
19,594 

(74,832) 
(2,157) 

(413,339) 

(568,994) 

385,223 

1,480,368 

163,975 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Food 

Service 
Fund 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 966,118 

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 

Intergovernmental - federal 24,322 

Other 

Inventories 4,041 

Total current assets 994,481 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 412,054 

Total noncurrent assets 412,054 

Total assets 1,406,535 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows - pension related 188,724 

Total deferred outflows of resources 188,724 

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 1,595,259 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ 

Due to other funds 
Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 761,117 

Total liabilities 761 ,117 

Net Position 
Net Investment in capital assets 412,054 

Restricted 422,088 

Total net position 834,142 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position $ 1,595,259 

Other 

Proprietary 
Funds 

$ 13,086 

12,767 

25,853 

25,853 

46,797 
46,797 

$ 72,650 

$ 

2,929 
2,929 

75,477 
78,406 

(5,756) 

(5,756) 

$ 72,650 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 

$ 979,204 

24,322 

12,767 

4,041 
1,020,334 

412,054 
412,054 

1,432,3 88 

235,521 

235,521 
$ 1,667,909 

$ 

2,929 

2,929 

836,594 
839,523 

412,054 
416,332 

828,386 

$ 1,667,909 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Food Other Total 
Service Proprietary Proprietary 

Fund Funds Funds 

Operating revenues: 
Lunchroom sales $ 77,255 $ $ 77,255 

Tuition from individuals 115,148 115,148 

Revenue from local sources 35,332 35,332 

Total operating revenues 77,255 150,480 227 735 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and wages 373,040 98,025 471,065 

Employee benefits 243,801 63,967 307,768 

Materials and supplies 908,590 21,175 929,765 

Depreciation 36,884 36,884 

Other operating expenses 8,905 4,219 13 ,124 

Total operating expenses 1,571,220 187,386 1,758,606 

Operating income (loss) (1,493,965) (36,906) (1,530,871) 

Nonoperating revenues: 

Federal grants 1,438,374 6,785 1,445,159 

Investment income 987 987 

Donated commodities 83,768 83,768 

Revenue from state sources ( on-behalf) 78,392 20,600 98,992 

State grants 13,333 13 ,3 33 

Total nonoperating revenue 1,614,854 27,385 1,642,239 

Increase (decrease) in net position 120,889 (9,521) 111,368 

Net position, June 30, 2016 713,253 3,765 717,018 

Net position, June 30, 2017 $ 834,142 $ (5 ,756) $ 828,386 

The accompanying notes to finan cial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BATl-1 COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASII FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Food 
Service 
fund 

Cash flows from operating activities : 
Cash received from : 

Lunchroom sales 
Tuition 
Other revenues 

Cash paid to/for: 
Payments to suppliers and providers of goods 
and services 

Payments to employees 
Other payments 
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Government grants 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from capita l and related financing activities: 
Purchases of capital assets 

Net cash used for capital and 
related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities : 
Interest received on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2016 

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2017 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used by 
operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash used for operating activities : 
Depreciation 
Donated commodities 
On-behalf revenues 
Net pension adjustment 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
Inventory 
Accounts receivable 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 

Non-cash items: 
Donated commodities 
On-behalf payments 

$ 77.255 

(835,437) 
(468,469) 

(8,905) 
(1,235 ,556) 

1,460,755 
1,460,755 

(22,032) 

(22,032) 

987 
987 

204, 154 

761 ,964 

$ 966, 118 

$ (1,493 ,965) 

36,884 
83.768 
78.392 
69,980 

518 

(11,133) 

$ (1,235,556) 

$ 83,768 
78.392 

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds 

$ -
108,913 
35,332 

(18,246) 
(123,069) 

(4,219) 
(1,289) 

6,785 
6,785 

5,496 

7,590 

$ 13,086 

$ (36,906) 

20,600 
18,323 

(6,235) 

2,929 

$ (1 ,289) 

$ -
20,600 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part ot'this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

Total 
Proprietary 

Funds 

77,255 
108,913 
35,332 

(853,683) 
(591,538) 

(13,124) 
(1,236,845) 

1,467,540 
1,467.540 

(22,032) 

(22.,032) 

987 
987 

209,650 

769,554 

979.204 

$ (1,530,871) 

36,884 
83,768 
98,992 
88,303 

518 
(6,235) 

(11 , 133) 
2.929 

$ (1,236,845) 

$ 83.768 
98,992 



BA TH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Trust 
Funds 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,126 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets 23,126 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Interfund payable 
Due to students 

Total liabilities 

Net position held in trust $ 23,126 

Activity 
Funds 

$ 216,507 

216,507 

216,507 
216,507 

$ 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Trust 
Funds 

Additions -
Interest income $ 
Other local revenues 70 

70 

Deductions -
Transfer out 
Benefits paid 1,000 

1,000 

Change in net position (930) 

Net position, June 30, 2016 24,056 

Net position, June 30, 2017 $ 23,126 

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral pati of this statement. 
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BATH COUNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENllES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES lr-i FUND BALANCI:: -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAi' BUDGETARY BASIS) 
GENERAL FllND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Buclgctccl Amounts Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget 

Revenues: 
Taxes -

Properly $ 1,190,000 $ 1,190,000 $ 1,569,506 $ 379,506 
Motor vehicles 225,000 225,000 307,939 82,939 
Utilities 575,000 575 ,000 592.321 17,321 

Interest income 3,000 3,000 7,963 4,963 
Other local revenues 1,000 5,500 10,088 4,588 

Intergovernmental - State 9,628,000 9,479,038 9,529,121 50,083 
lntergovernmenlal - Direcl federal 100,000 50,000 252,444 202,444 

Total revenues 11,722,000 11,527,538 12,269,382 741 ,844 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Instruction 7,647,901 7,505,950 7,085,974 419,976 
Support services: 

Students 977,306 973,573 967,964 5,609 
Instructional staff 327,934 203,185 137,584 65,601 
District administration 1,222,647 1,210,425 825,333 385,092 
School administration 841,905 824,473 805,188 19,285 
Business and other support services 315,009 282,618 333,351 (50,733) 
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,711,354 1,759,482 1,364,093 395,389 
Student transportation 1,375,614 1,379,714 1,103,041 276,673 
Community services 27,437 24,088 27,933 (3,845) 

Debt service 225,000 229,459 219,274 10,185 
Contingency 420,224 415,947 415,947 

Total expenditures 15,092,331 14,808,914 12,869,735 1,939, I 79 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures (3,370,331) (3,281,376) (600,353) 2,681,023 

Other financing sources (uses) : 
Capital lease proceeds 119,529 119,529 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 500 5,000 5,953 953 
Transfers in 340,000 300,000 (40,000) 
Transfers out (50,000) (50,000) (39,147) 10,853 

Total other financing sources and uses (49,500) 295,000 386.335 91,335 

Net change in fund balances (3,419,831) (2,986,376) (214,018) 2,772,358 

Fund balances, .lune 30, 2016 3,419,831 2,986,376 3,058,172 71 ,796 

Fund balances, June 30, 2017 $ $ $ 2,844,154 $ 2,844, I 54 

Adjustments to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles -
Intergovernmental State Revenue $ 3,388,306 
On-behalf payments: 

Instruction (2,293,493) 
Support services: 

Student support (263,70 I) 
Instructional staff support (38,952) 
District administration (113,894) 
School administration (251,456) 
Business and other support services (80,436) 
Operation and maintenance of plant (155,112) 
Student transportation (183,529) 
Community services (7,733) 

Fund balance, June 30, 2017 (GAAP basis) $ 2,844,154 

The accompanying notes to financial slatcmcnts are an integral parl oflhis stalemenl. 
- 21 -



BATII COllNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Revenues: 
Interest income $ 160,001 $ 167,592 $ [48,012 

Other local revenues 37,576 500 72,204 

Intergovernmental - State 856,248 904,707 1,000, 116 

Intergovernmental - Indirect federal 1,529,628 1,521,070 I,626,I27 

Total revenues 2,5 83 ,453 2,593,869 2,846,459 

Expenditures : 
Current: 

Instruction I,741,494 1,812,192 1,810,578 

Support services: 
Students 116,511 120,060 125,949 

Instructional staff 400,314 411,423 538,507 

District administration 21,268 

Operation and maintenance of plant 39,307 37,489 27,862 

Student transpottation 59,508 59,509 42,758 

Food service operation 4,528 

Community services 276,319 277,399 314,156 

Total expenditures 2,633,453 2,718,072 2,885,606 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenues over 
expenditures (50,000) (124,203) (39,147) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 50,000 124,203 39,147 

Total other financing sources and uses 50,000 124,203 39 147 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, June 30, 2016 

Fund balances, June 30, 2017 $ $ $ 

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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Variance with 
Final Budget 

$ (19,580) 
71,704 
95,409 

105,057 
252,590 

1,614 

(5,889) 
(127,084) 

(21,268) 
9,627 

16,751 
(4,528) 

(36,757) 
(167,534) 

85,056 

(85,056) 
(85,056) 

$ 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

(1) REPORTING ENTITY 

The Bath County Board of Education (the "Board ') a five-member group, is the level of government 
wl1ich has versigbt responsibilities over all activities related to public, elementary, and secondary 
school education within the jurisdiction of Bath County School District (the ''District'). The District 
receives fi.mding from Jocal, state and Federal goverrm1ent sources and must comply with the 
commitment requirements of these funding source entities. However, the District is not included in 
any other governmental "reporting entity' as defined in Section 2100, Codification of Governmental 
Accow1ting and Financial Reporting Standards as Boa.rd members are elected by the public and have 
decision making authority the power to designate management, the .responsibility to develop policies 
which may .influence operations and primary accountability for fiscal matters. 

The Board, for financial reporting purposes includes all of the funds and account groups relevant to 
the operation of the Bath County School District. The fu1ancial statements presented herein do not 
include funds of groups and organizations, which although associated with the school system,, have 
not originated within the Board itself such as Band Boosters, Parent-Teacher Associations, etc. 

The financial statements of the District include those of separately administered organizations that are 
controlled by or dependent on the Board. ControJ or dependence is determined on the basis of budget 
adoption, funding and appointment of the respective governing board. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financial statements of the following organization are included in 
the accompanying financial statements. Copies of this organization s financial statements may be 
obtained from the Superintendent or the District's Finance Officer Brittany Combs at 405 West Main 
Street, Owingsville, Kentucky 40360. 

Bath Cow1ty Board. of Education Finance Corporation - On November 29, 1988, the Bath County, 
Kentucky, Board of Education resolved to authorize the establishment of the Bath County School 
District Finance Corporation (a non-profit, non-stock, public and charitable corporation organized 
under the School Bond Act and KRS 273 and KRS Section 58.180) as an agency of the Board for 
financing the costs of school building facilities. The Board Members of the Bath County Board of 
Education also comprise the Corporation's Board of Directors. 

The financial statements of the following entity are not included in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

C.C. Chenault Memorial Trust 

The Trust was created to establish agricultural programs for the District. The District receives a 
quarterly payment from the trust for its agricultural programs. The District had a carryover balance 
to FY 2017 of $74 203 and received $147,738 in quarterly payments in the current year and spent 
$144,279 and had a carryover balance of $77,662 to fY 2018 . This activity is recorded in the Special 
Revenue Fund. The Trust maintains separate accounting records and is not governed or managed by 
the District. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DESCRIPTION OF 
FUNDS 

Basis of Presentation 

The accounting policies of the Bath County School District substantially comply with the rules 
prescribed by the Kentucky Department of Education for local school districts. 
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The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements. The government-wide statements focus on the District as a whole, while the fund 
financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that can 
be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the usefulness of the 
information. 

Government-wide statements provide information about the primary government (the District). The 
statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements report 
the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. They also distinguish 
between the governmental and business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities 
generally are financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are 
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. 
This is the same approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund financial statements but 
differs from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared. 
Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to 
better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for 
governmental funds. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the District's governmental activities and segment of its business-type activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically. associated with a program or function and, therefore, 
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The District does not allocate indirect expenses to 
programs or functions, except where allowable for certain grant programs. Program revenues include 
charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program and grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital reqLriremenls of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated 
resources and all taxes, are reported as general revenues, with certain limited exceptions. The 
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business 
segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the 
District. 

Fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, including fiduciary funds. 
Separate statements are presented for the governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund categories. 
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major funds, each displayed in a separate column. 
All remaining funds are aggregated and repmied as nonmajor funds. Fiduciary funds are aggregated 
and reported by fund type. 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
All governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus. The finru1cial statements for governmental funds are a balance sheet, which 
generally includes only current assets and ctment liabilities, and a statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances which reports n the changes in net total a sets. 
Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are reported using the economi resources measurement focus. 
The statement of cash flows provides information about how th District finance· and meets the cash 
flow needs of its proprietary activities. 

The District has the following funds: 

I. Governm ntal Fund Types 

(A) The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It accounts for financial 
resources used for general types of operations. This is a budgeted fund, and any fund 
balances are considered as resources available for use. This is a major fund of the 
District. 
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(B) The Special Revenue Fund accounts for proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to disbursements for 
specified purposes. 

1. The Special Revenue Fund includes federal financial programs where unused 
balances are returned to the grantor, at the close of specified project periods, as 
well as the state grant programs. Project accounting is employed to maintain 
integrity for the various sources of funds. The separate projects of federally funded 
grant programs are identified in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
included in this report. This is a major fund of the District. 

2. The District Activity Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for funds 
collected at individual schools for operation costs of the school or school district 
that allows for more flexibility in the expenditure of those funds. 

(C) Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and equipment ( other than those 
financed by Proprietary Fund). 

(D) 

1. The Support Education Excellence in Kentucky (SEEK) Capital Outlay Fund 
receives those funds designated by the State as Capital Outlay Funds and is 
restricted for use in financing projects identified in the District's facility plan. 

2. The Facility Support Program of Kentucky (FSPK) accounts for funds 
generated by the building tax levy required to participate in the School 
Facilities Construction Commission's construction funding and state matching 
funds, where applicable. Funds may be used for projects identified in the 
District's facility plan. This is a major fund of the District. 

3. The Construction Fund accounts for proceeds from sales of bonds and other 
revenues to be used for authorized construction. 

Debt Service Funds 
The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and 
the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest and related costs; and for 
the payment of interest on general obligation notes payable, as required by Kentucky 
Law. 

II. Propri etary f u nd Types (Enterprise Fund) 

(A) The Food Service Fund is used to account for school food service activities, including 
the National School Lunch Program, which is conducted in cooperation with the U.S. 
Department of Agriculture (USDA). Amounts have been recorded for in-kind 
contribution of commodities from the USDA. The Food Service Fund is a major fund 
of the District. 

(B) The Child Care Fund and Preschool Fund are used to account for day care type 
activities. 

III. Fiduci ary Fund Type (Agency and Private Purpose Trust Funds) 

(A) The Agency fund accounts for activities of student groups and other types of activities 
requiring clearing accounts. These funds are accounted for in accordance with the 
Un(form Program of Accounting for School Activity Funds. 

(B) The Trust Fund is a scholarship fund . The principal and interest earned may be used 
for scholarships to Bath County High School students . 
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Bas.i s of Accounting 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported 
on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary 
and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues are recorded from exchange and non-exchange transactions. Revenues resulting from 
exchange transactions, in which each party receives essentially equal value, are recorded on the 
accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded in 
the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and available. Available means that the 
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means 
expected to be received within sixty days of the fiscal year-end. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in 
return, include property taxes, grruJts, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from 
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, 
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the 
resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching 
requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose,, 
and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a reirnblll"sement 
basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenues from nonexchange transactions must also be available 
before it can be recognized. 

Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition 
criteria have been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are 
met are recorded as deferred revenue. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available 
for use, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as 
needed. 

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The fair value 
of donated commodities used during the year is reported in the statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position as an expense with a like amount reported as donated commodities revenue. 

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period 
in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation, 
are not recognized in governmental funds. 

Property Taxes 

Property taxes are levied each September on the assessed value li sted as of the pr ior January 1 for alJ 
real and personal prope1iy in the county. The billings are consider d due upon receipt by the 
taxpayer; however, the actual date is based on a period ending 30 days a:ft r Lbe Lax bill mailing. 
Property taxes collected are recorded as revenues in the fiscal year for which U1ey were levied. AU 
taxes collected are initially deposited into the General Fund and then transferred. to the appropriate 
fund. 

The property tax rates assessed for t he year ended June 30, 2017, to finance the General Fund 
operations were $.448 per $ I 00 valuation for real property, $.448 per $100 valuation for business 
personal property and $.464 per $100 valuati on fo r motor vehicles. 

The District levies a utility gross receipts license tax in the amount of 3% of the gross receipts 
derived from the furnishings, within the county, of telegraphic communications services, cablevision 
services, electric power, water, and gas. 
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Capital A sets 

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary 
funds. These assets genera lly result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are 
repoLted i.n the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net p si lion but 
are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are 
reported both in the business-type activities colwnn of the government-wide statement of net position 
and in the respective funds. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (o r estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and 
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair rnarket values as of the 
date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars $5,000) with 
the exception of real property for which there is no threshold. The District does not possess any 
infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the value of the asset or materially extend an assets Life are not capitalized. 

All reported capital assets are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
following useful lives for both general capital assets and proprietary fund assets: 

Description 
Buildings and improvements 
Land improvements 
Technology equipment 
Vehicles 
Audio-visual equipment 
Food service equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Other 

Interfund Balances 

Estimated Lives 
25-50 years 

20 years 
5 years 

5-10 years 
15 years 

10-12 years 
7 years 

10 years 

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interf tmd loans are 
classified as 'interfon.d receivables/payables". These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and 
business-type activities columns of the statements of net position, except for the net residual amounts 
due between govenunental and busines -type activities, which are presented as internal balances. 

Accumulated Unpaid Sick Leave Benefits 

Upon retirement from the school system, an employee will receive from the District an amount equal 
to 30% of the value of accumulated sick leave. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination payment method. An accrual for 
earned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in termination 
payments . The li abi lity is based on the School District's past experience of making termination 
payments. The entire compensated absence li ability is reported on the government-wide fin ancial 
statements. 

f 01· governmental fund financial statements the current portion of unpaid accrued sick leave is the 
am0tmt expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are recorded in the 
account' accumulated sick leave payable" in the general fund. The noncurrent portion of the liability 
is not reported in the fund financial statements, but is reflected in the statement of net position. The 
District has committed $71 79 for accumulated sick leave as of June 30, 2017. 

Budgetary Process 

Budgetary Basis of A counting: The District's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on 
a basis other than Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The major difference beLween 
the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis is that on-behalf payments made by the slate for the District 
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are not budgeted. See note ( 14) for these amounts which were not known by the District at the time 
the budget was adopted. 

Once the budget is approved, it can be amended. Amendments are presented to the Board at their 
regular meetings. Per Board policy only amendments that aggregate great r than $5-0,000 require 
Board approval. Such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official minutes of 
the Board, and aJ_"e not made after fiscal year-end as dictated by law. 

Each budget is prepared and controlled by the budget coordinator at the revenue and expenditure 
function/object level. All budget appr priations lapse at year-end. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The District considers demand deposits, money market funds, and other investments with and 
original maturity of 90 days or less, to be cash equivalents. 

Inventories 

Supplies and materials are charged to expenditures when purchased, with the exception of the 
proprietary funds, whicb records inventory using the accrual basis of accounting. luventories are 
stated at the lower of cost or market, on the fLrst-in, first-out basis. 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Te1m Obligations 

All payables accrued liabilities and Jong-tei"m obligations are repotied in the government-wide 
financial statements and all payables accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from 
proprietary funds are reported on th proprietary fund financial statements. 

In general, payables and accrued liabilities that will be paid from governmental funds are reported on 
the governmental fund financial statements regardless of whether they will be liquidated with cun-ent 
resources. However claims and judgments, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, accumuJated sick 
leave contractually required pension contributions and special termination benefits that will be paid 
from governmental funds are reported as a liabilrty in the fund financial statements only to the extent 
tl1at they will be paid with cm-rent e ·pendable, available financial resources. In general, all payments 
made within sixty days after year-end are considered to have been made with cw-rent available 
financial resources. Bonds and other long-term obligations that will be paid from governmental 
funds are not recognized as a liability in the fund financial statements until due. 

Fund Balance Reserves 

The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints placed on the 
purposes for which resources can be used: 

• Non-spendable fund balance-amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or 
are required to be maintained intact; 

• Restricted fund balance-amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as 
grantors, bondholders and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or 
by enabling legislation; 

• Committed fund balance-amounts constrained to specific purposes by the District itself, using 
its decision-making authority (the "Board"); to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the District takes the action to remove or change the 
constraint; 

• Assigned fund balance-amounts the District intends to use for a specific purpose (such as 
encumbrances); intent can be expressed by the District or by an official or body to which the 
District delegates the authority; 

• Unassigned fund balance-amounts that are available for any purpose; unassigned amounts are 
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reported only in the General Fund. 

When restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned resources are available for use, it is the District's 
policy to use restricted, committed and assigned resources first, then unassigned resomces as they are 
needed. 

Net Position 

Net position repres.ents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are Limitations imposed on their use 
either through the enabljng legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions 
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the 
proprietary funds. For the School District those revenues are primarily charges for meals provided by 
the various schools. All other revenues are nonoperating. Operating expenses can be tied 
specifically to the production of the goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct 
overhead. Other expenses are nonoperating. 

Tnterfw1.d Activity 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as 
expenditures/expenses in the pw·chaser fonds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another 
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are 
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating 
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial 
statements. 

Bond Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes repot1 a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an outflow of resources ( expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities the Statement of 
Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period s and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. 

Pension 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liab ility, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan s 
fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are repo1ted by the plan. For this purpose benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the benefit terms. [nvestments are reported at fair value. 
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Po. temploymenl Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans ("GASB 75 ). GASB 75 replaces 

tatemeni No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting b Employers for Poslemployment. Benefits 
Other than Pensions and No. 57 OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent ,Multiple 
Employer Plcms. It establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities defened outflows 
of resources deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures for other postemployrnent 
benefits ("OPEB"). In addition, GASB 75 details the recognition and disclosure requirements for 
employers with payables to defined benefit OPEB plan ' that are administered through trusts that meet 
the specified criteria and for employers whose employees are provided with de.fined contribution 
OPEB. GASB 75 will be effective for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2018. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues ("GASB 82"). GASB 82 
addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary 
information, (2) the selection of asswnptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an 
Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments 
made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements that arose during 
the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68. The adoption of this standard did not have a material 
effect on the District's financia1 statements. 

In February 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities ("GASB 84"). GASB 84 
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. Generally, 
the foc us of the eriteria relates to (I) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity, and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are 
included to identify fiduciary component units and post-employment benefit arrangements that are 
fiduciary activities. Additionally GASB 84 describes fom fiduciary funds that should be reported, if 
applicable: (I) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) 
private-pmpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds . Custodial ftmds generally should report fiduciary 
activities that are not held in a trust, or an equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria. 
Finally, it provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event 
has occtmed that compels the government to disburse fiduci ary resources. GASB 84 will be effective 
for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2020. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 ("GASB 85"), which seeks to 
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting by addressing practice issues that have 
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. GASB 85 
addresses several topics, including issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value 
measurement and app lication, and po t-employmerlt b n fits (i.e., pensions and other post­
employment benefits (OPEB)). ln particular, tbis Statement covers: 

• Blending a component unit in circumstances in which the primary government is a business-
type activity that reports in a single column for financial statement presentation. 

• Reporting amounts previously reported as goodwill and "negative" goodwill. 

• Classifying real estate held by insurance entities. 

• Measuring certain money market investments and participating interest-earning investment 
contracts at amortized cost. 

• Timing of the measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in 
financial statements prepared using the cunent financial resources measurement focus. 

• Recognizing on-behalf payments for pensions or OPEB in employer financial statements. 

• Presenting payroll-related measure in required supplementary information for purposes of 
reporting by OPEB plans and employers that provide OPEB. 

• Classifying employer-paid member contributions for OPEB. 

- 30 -



• Simplifying certain aspects of the alternative measurement method for OPEB. 

• Accounting and financial reporting for OPEB provided through ceiiain multiple-employer 
defined benefit OPEB plans. 

GASB 85 will be effective for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2018. 

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment lssues (' GASB 86 ), 
which seeks to (1) improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for certain debt 
extinguishments and (2) enhance the decision-usefulness of such information. GASB 86 establishes 
standards of accounting and financial repo1iing for in-substance defeasance transactions in which 
cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources (i.e. resomces other than the 
proceeds of refunding debt) are placed in an irrevocable h-u t for the purpose of extinguishing debt. 
Additionally, it amends accounting and financial reporting requirements for prepaid insurance 
associated with debt that is extinguished, whether through a legal extinguishment or through an in­
substance defeasance, regardless of how the cash and other monetary assets were acquired. FinalJy, 
GASB 86 establishes an additional disclosure requirement related to debt that is defeased in 
substance, regardless of how the cash and other monetary assets were acquired. GASB 86 will be 
effective for the District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2018. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases ("GASB 87"), which establishes standards 
of accounting and financial reporting for leases by less es and lessors. GASB 87 (1) increases the 
usefulness of governments' financial statements by requjring recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of 
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract; and (2) 
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are 
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Additionally, under GASB 87, a lessee is required 
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inf1ow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments' leasing activities. GASB 87 will be effective for the 
District beginning with its year ending June 30, 202 1 and will be applied retroactively by restating 
financial statements. Management is CLUTently evaluati11g the impact of this Statement on its financial 
statements. 

(3) ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of AmeLica requires the District ' s management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reporled amounts of assets, liabilities, fund balances, and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements. and the repo rted amounts 
of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

(4) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The funds of the District must be deposited and invested under the terms of a contract. The depository 
bank places approved pledged securities for safekeeping and trust with the District 's agent bank in an 
amount sufficient to protect istrict funds on a day-t -day basis during the period of the contract. The 
pledge of approved se urities is waived only to the xtent of the depository bank s dollar amount of 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ('FDIC') insurance. 

At year-end, the carrying amount of the District's total cash and cash equivalents was $5,880,712 and 
the related bank balances totaJed $6,243,799. Of the total cash balance, $271,038 was covered by 
Federal Depository insurance, with the remainder covered by collateral agreements and collateral 
held by tbe pledging banks trust departments in the Districts name. Cash equivalents are funds 
temporarily invested in secw·i ti es with a maturity f 90 days or less. 

Due to the nature of the accounts and ce1iain limitations imposed on the use of funds, each bank 
account within the following funds is considered to be restricted: SEEK Capital Outlay Fund, 
Facility Support Program (FSPK) Fund Education B1.1ilding Fund, Special Revenue (Grant) Funds, 
Band and Interest Redemption Fund School Food Service Funds, and School Activity Funds. 
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Breakdown per financial statements: 

Governmental funds 
Proprietary funds 
Trust and Agency funds 

(5) LONG-TERM DEBT 

Bonds 

$ 4,661,875 
979,204 
239,633 

$ 5,880,712 

The original amount of each issue, the issue date and interest rates are summarized as follows: 

Issue 
Date 

2006-K 
2008 

2008-K 
2008 

2009-K 
2012-K 
2012R 
2013R 
2013 

2013QZAB 
2014E 
2014K 

2014 KSBIT 
2015 K 
2016 K 
2016R 
2017 K 

Proceeds 
208,738 
705,000 
159,075 

8,975,000 
120,186 
166,886 

1,100,000 
4,350,000 
1,495,000 
3,000,000 
1,955,000 

185,786 
127,858 
212,062 
217,171 

6,445,000 
119,529 

Rates 
3.50% - 3.875% 
3.30% - 4.30% 
2.40% - 4.00% 
2.30% - 4.00% 
2.00% - 3.90% 
2.00% - 2.63% 
1.10% - 2.35% 
1.00% - 2.25% 
1.30% -4.10% 

0.00% 
1.10% - 3.40% 
2.00% - 3.00% 

0.00% 
1.00% - 2.625% 
2.00% - 2.625% 
1.05% - 2.00% 

2.55% 

The District through the General Fund (including utility taxes and the upport Education Ex._eellence 
in Kentucky (SEEK) Capital Outlay fund) i obligaled lo make payments in amounts sufficient to 
satisfy debt service requirements on bonds issued by the Bath ounly Fiscal ColUt and the School 
District Finance Corporation to construcl school facilities. The District has an option to purchase the 
property under lease at any time by reti ring the bonds then outstanding. 

In 2008 2012, 2013, and 2016 the District entered into participation agreements" with the School 
Facility construction Commission. The Commission was created by the Kentucky General Assembly 
for the pmpose of assisting local school districts in meeting school construction needs. The table 
below sets forth the amount to be paid by the Districl and the Commission for each year until 
maturity of all bond issues. 

The bonds may be called prior to matrll'ity and redemption premiums are specified in each issue. 
Assuming no bonds are called pi"ior to scheduled maturity, the mi rum um obligations of the District 
including amounts to be paid by th Commission al Jtme 30 20 17, Jor debt service (principal and 
interest) are as follows: 

Year 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023-2027 

Kentucky School Facilities 
Construction Commission 
Principal Interest 

$ 599,327 $ 146,957 
608,532 131,431 
595,064 123,682 
607,477 115,397 
613,678 106,817 

3,000,377 338,178 

Bath County School Distiict 
Principal Interest 

$ 863,397 $ 177,134 
852,610 164,273 
859,255 152,165 
865,831 139,988 
881,639 127,182 

4,134,095 407,747 
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Total 
$ 1,786,815 

1,756,846 
1,730,166 
1,728,693 
1,729,316 
7,880,397 



2028-2033 
2033-2035 

877 349 
I 52,932 

' 7 054,736 

79,779 
5 993 

$ 1,048,234 

1,447,651 
507,068 

$ 10,4l],546 

157,T'S 
25.662 

L 351 88 

2,562,514 
691 ,655 

$ 19.866,402 

On August 1, 2016 the District issued $6 445,000 in refun.diog bond with an average rate of 1.86% to 
advance refund $420,000 of the series of 2008A bonds with an average rate of 4.27% and $5 560 000 of 
the series of2008B bonds with an average rate of 3.86%. The proceeds of the refunding bonds were used 
to purchase U.S. government securities, which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow 
agent to provide for all future payments on the refunded bonds. Thus, the refunded bonds in the amount 
of $5 980 000 are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from 
liabilities. 

This advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the old debt of $385,223. Th.is difference, reported iJ1 the accompanying .financial statements 
as a deferred outflow of resources, is being charged to operations through the year 2028 using the 
straight-line method. Additionally, the District reduced its total debt service payments over the following 
12 years by $492,482 and obtained an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments of the old and new bonds) of$448,126. 

KSBIT Payable 

The Kentucky School Boards Insurance Trust ("KS BIT") notified the District during fiscal year 2013 
that their self-insurance pools for worker's compensation and liability insurance were underfunded. 
As a result, an assessment will be required under a fair methodology to be approved by the Kentucky 
Department of Insurance, of curret1t and past participating members to fund the deficit aud the 
tTansfer of liability to a qualified insurer/reinsurer. On May 13, 2014 tbe court approved the plan of 
assessment tendered by KSBIT and approved the Loss Portfolio Transfer lo 1 entucky Employers 
Mutual Insurance ( KEMI"). As a result the Distl."ict's pmtion of the liability was estimated at 
$127,858. The District took the option of paying 25% down by August 31, 2014 and financing the 
remaining balance over 6 years to be paid in equal annual installments beginning August 31, 2016 
with no interest. The following is a schedule by year of payments: 

Year 
Ending 
2018 $ 
2019 
2020 
2021 

$. 

A summary of activity in bond obligations and other debts is as follows: 

Description 
General obligation bonds -

$28,025,000 originally 
issued with interest rates 
ranging from 0.0% to 
4.3% 

Discount on bonds 

KIST A Loans with interest 
rates ranging from 1.0% 
to 4.0% 

KSBIT Liability 

Balance at 
June 30, 2016 

$17,610,000 

(37,299) 

736,140 

79,911 

Additions Payments 

$ 6,445,000 $ 7,315,000 

(15,535) 

119,529 
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(2,157) 

129,387 

15,982 

15 982 
15,982 
I 5,982 
15,983 
63,929 

Balance at 
June 30, 2017 

$ 16,740,000 

(50,677) 

726,282 

63,929 



Accumulated unpaid sick 
leave benefits 

(6) CAPITAL ASSETS 

174,843 
$ 18.563,595 

37 722 
$ 6,586,716 $ 7.458.212 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Non-depreciable: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Depreciable: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
General equipment 
Vehicles 

Totals 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Land improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Technology equipment 
General equipment 
Vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental Activities 

Balance 
June 30, 2016 Additions 

$ 518,317 $ 
25,320 

1,066,761 
33,275,351 

2,049,939 
854,866 

3,307,233 
41,097,787 

894,094 
8,716,356 
1,566,832 

657,984 
2,348,456 

14,183,722 

498,371 

102,510 
2,500 

209,625 
813,006 

27,102 
780,364 
218,172 

33,291 
184.5 88 

1,243,517 

$ 

Deductions 

83,151 

154,829 
237,980 

82,670 

154,829 
237 499 

212.565 
$ _1.692.099 

Balance 
June 30, 2017 

$ 518,317 
523,691 

1,066,761 
33,275,351 

2,069,298 
857,366 

3,362.029 
41,672,813 

921,196 
9,496,720 
1,702,334 

691,275 
2,378.215 

l 5,'189,740 

Capital Assets - Net $ 26,914 • .o.62 $ ( 41Qjll) $ 481 1£:$ =~,4~8~3-~07!,,,t,,3 

Bus iness- ype Activities 
Buildings and improvements 
Food service and equipment 
Technology equipment 
Vehicles 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
Building and improvements 
Food service and equipment 
Technology equipment 
Vehicles 

Business-Type Activities 
Capital Assets - Net 

$ 308,000 $ 
559,429 

14,492 

881 921 

49,793 
396,144 

9,078 

455 015 

42 906 $ 

2,037 
19.995 
22.032 

6,160 
27,120 

2,604 
I 000 

36 884 

$ 

(14,852) "=$ ===~ 

Depreciation expense was allocated to governmental functions as follows : 

Instruction 
Student support services 
Instructional staff support services 
District administration 
School administration 
Business support services 
Plant operation & maintenance 
Student transportation 
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$ 

$ 

308,000 
559 429 

16,529 
19.995 

903.953 

55,953 
423,264 

11,682 
I 000 

491 899 

412,054 

$ 328,915 
51,226 
26,729 
25,504 

5,362 
5,656 

615,008 
185 117 

$ 1.243,517 



(7) COMMITMENTS UNDER NONCAPIT ALIZED LEASES 

Commitments under operating lease agreements for equipment provide for minimum future rental 
payments as of June 30, 2017, as follows: 

Year ending 
2018 

(8) RETIREMENT PLANS 

Kentucky Teachers Retirement System 

$ 15.646 

Pian description: Teaching-certified employees of the Kentucky School District are provided pensions 
through the Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Kentucky (KTRS) a c st-sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation established to provide retirement 
annuity plan coverage for local school districts and other public educational agencies in the state. KTRS 
was created by the 1938 General Assembly and is governed by Chapter 161 Section 220 through 
Chapter 161 Section 990 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS). KTRS is a blended component unit of 
the Conunonwealth of Kentucky and therefore is included in the Commonwealth's f10a.ncial statements. 
KTRS issues a publicly available :financial report that can be obtained at 
http://www.ktrs.ky.gov/05 publications/index.htm. 

Bene.fits provided: For members who have established an account in a retirement system administered 
by the Commonwealth p1ior to July 1, 2008, members become vested when they comp! te five (5) yea.rs 
of credited service. To qualify for monthly retirement benefits, payable for Life, members must either: 

1.) Attain age fifty-five (55) and complete five (5) years of Kentucky service, or 
2.) Complete 27 years of Kentucky service. 

Par6cipants that retire befoi-e age 60 with less than 27 years of service receive reduced retirement 
benefits. Non-university members with an account established prior to July 1, 2002 receive monthly 
payments equal to two (2) percent (service prior to July 1, 1983) and two and one-half (2.5) percent 
(service after July 1, 1983) of their final average salaries for each year of credited ervice. New members 
(including second retirement accounts) after July 1, 2002 will receive monthly ben fits equal to 2% of 
tbeir fi11al average salary for each year of service if, upon retirement, their total ervice is less than ten 
years. New members after July 1, 2002 who retire with ten or more years of total service will receive 
monthly benefits equal to 2.5% of their final average salary for each year of service, including the first 
ten years. In addition, members who retire July 1, 2004 and later with more than 30 years of service will 
have lheir multiplier increased for all years over 30 from 2.5% to 3.0% to be used in their benefit 
calculati Ll. Effective July 1, 2008 the KTRS has been amended to change the benefit structure for 
members hired on or after that date. 

Final average salary is defined as the member's five (5) highest annual salarie for those with less than 
27 years of service. Members at least age 55 with 27 or more years of service may use their three (3) 
highest annual salaries to compute the final average salary. KTR also provides disab ility benefits for 
vested members at the rate of si ty (60) percent of the final average salary. A li fe insurance benefit, 
payable upon the death of a member, is $2,000 for active contributing member and $5,000 for retired or 
disabled members. 

Cost of living increases are one and one-half (1.5) percent annually. Additional ad hoc increases and any 
other benefit amendments must be authorized by the: General Assembly. 

'ontribution ·: Contribution rntes are established by Kentucky Revised Statutes (KRS). Non-university 
members are required to contribute 12.105% of their salaries to the System. Universi ty members are 
required L contrib11te 9.895% of their salaries. KRS 161.580 allows each university to reduce the 
contribution of i.ts members by 2.215%; therefore, university members contribute 7 .68% of their salary 
to KTRS. 
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The Commonwealth of Kentucky, as a non-employer contributing entity pays matching contributions in 
the amount of 13.105% of salaries for local school dist1ict and regional cooperative employee hired 
before July 1, 2008 and 14.105% for those hired after July l, 2008 . University employers contribute 
15.36% of salaries of members. For local school district and regional cooperative member whose 
salruies are federally funded the employer contribules 15.-..55% of salaries. If an employee leaves 
covered employment before accumulating five (5) years of credited service accumulated employee 
pension contributions plus interest are refunded to the employee upon the member's request. 

KTRS - Medical Insurance Plan 

Plan description: lo addition to the pension benefits described above, Kentucky Revised Statute 161.675 
requires l TRS to provide post-em.ployment healthcare benefits to eligible members and dependents. 
The KTRS Medical Insurance benefit is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan. Changes 
made to the medical plan may be made by the KTRS Board of Trustees the Kentucky Department of 
Employee Insurance and the General Assembly. 

To be eligible for medical benefits, the member must have retired either for service or disability. The 
KTRS Medical Insurance Fund offers coverage to members under the age of 65 through the Kentucky 
Employees Health Plan administered by the Kentucky Department of Employee lusw·ance. Once retired 
members and eligible spouses attain age 65 and ru·e Medicare eligible, coverage is obtained through the 
KTRS Medicare Eligible Health Plan. 

Funding policy: 1n order to fund the post-retirement healthcare benefit, six percent (6.00%) of the gross 
annual payroll of members before July 1, 2008 is contributed. Three percent (3.00%) is paid by member 
contributions and three quarters percent (.75%) from state appropriation and two and one quarter percent 
(2.25%) from the employer. Also, the premiums collected from retirees as described in the plan 
description and investment interest help meet the medical expenses of the plan. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to KTRS 

At June 30 2017, the District did not report a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability because the Commonwealth of Kentuck.-y provides the pension support directly to KTRS on 
behalf of the District. The amount recognized by the Di trict as its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated 
with the District were as follows: 

District's proportionate share of the net 
Pension liability 

Commonwealth s propmtionate share of the 
Net Pension liability associated with the 
District 

$ 

80.308,734 
$ 80,308.734 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016 and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was detem1i11ed by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Dish·ict's 
proportion of tbe net pension liability was based on the actual liability of the employees and former 
employees relative to the total liability of the Conrn1onwealth as determined by the actuary. At June 30, 
2016 the District's propoliion was 0.2722%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Dish·ict recognized pension expense of $6,542,503 and revenue of 
$6,542 503 for support provided by the State. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation 
was detennined using the following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
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Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Single Equivalent Interest Rate 
Municipal Bond Index Rate 
Inflation 
Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return 

June 30, 2016 
Entry Age Normal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
30 years 
5-year smoothed market 
4.20% 
3.01% 
3.5% 
4.0-8.2%, including inflation 
7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 

inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females as 
appropriate with adjustments for mortality improvements based on a projection of Scale AA to 2020 
with a setback of 1 year for females. The last experience study was perfo1med in 2011 and th next 
experience study is scheduled to be conducted in 2017. 

The long-term expected rate of rettu-n on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to _produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
futme real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retw-n for each major asset class, as 
provided by KTRS's investment consultant, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
U.S. Equity 
Non U.S. Equity 
Fixed Income 
High Yield Bonds 
Real Estate 
Alternatives 
Cash 

Target Allocation 
45.0% 
17.0% 
24.0% 

4.0% 
4.0% 
4.0% 
2.0% 

100.0% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

6.4% 
6.5% 
1.6% 
3.1% 
5.8% 
6.8% 
1.5% 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.20%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will b made 
at the cu1Tent contribution rates and the Employer contributions will be made at statutorily required rate ·. 
Based on those assumptions the pension plan's fiduciary net position v,,as projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of ctment plan members unti I the 2040 plan year. Therefore 
the I ng-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was appljed to all periods of projected 
benefit payments through 2039 and a mwricipal bond index rate of 3.01 % was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments after 2039. The Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR) that discounts the 
entire projected benefit stTeam t the same amount as the sum of the present values of the two separate 
benefit payments streams was used to determine tbe total pension liability. 

The fo llowing table presents the net pension liability of the Commonwealth associated with the District, 
calculated using the discow1t rate of 4.20% as well as what the Commonwealth's net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (3 .20%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (5.20%) than the current rate: 

Commonwealth's prop011ionate share of the 
Net Pension liability associated with the 
District 

1% 
Decrease 
(3.20%) 

Current 
discount rate 

(4.20%) 

1% 
Increase 
(5.20%) 

$ 103,265,000 $ 80,308,734 $ 68,508,000 
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Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed infonnation about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the separately issued KTRS financial report which is publically available at 
http://www.ktrs.ky.gov/. 

County Employees Retirement ystem 

Plan description: Substantially aJl foll-time classified employees of the District paiticipate in the County 
Employees Retirement System ("CERS"). CERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plao administered by the Kentucky General Assembly. The plan covers substantially all regular 
full-time members employed in non-hazai·dous duty positions of each county and school board, and any 
additional eligible local agencies electing to patiicipate in the plan. The plan provides for retirement, 
disability and death benefits to plan members. 

GERS issues a publicly available financial rep01t included in_ the Kentucky Retirement Systems Annual 
Report that includes financial statements and the required supplementary information for CERS. That 
report may be obtained by. writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 
Louisville Road Frankfmi Kentucky, 40601 or by calling (502) 564-4646 or at https://kyret.ky.gov. 

Benefits provided: Benefits under the plan wil I vary based on final compensation, years of service and 
other factors as fully described in the plan docwnents. 

Contributions: Funding for CERS is provided by members, who contribute 5.00% (6.00% for 
employees hired after September 1, 2008) of their salary through payroll deductions, and by employers 
of members. For the year ending June 30, 2017, employers were required to contribute 18.68% (13.95% 
- pension, 4.73% insmance) of the member's salary. During the year ending June 30, 2017 the District 
contributed $369,903 to the CERS pension plan. The contribution requirements of CERS are established 
and may be amended by the CERS Board of Trustees. 

CERS - Medical Insurance Plan 

Plan description: CERS health insurance benefits ai·e also subject to various participation dates to 
determine eligibility and health insw-ance contribution rates. For employees who initiated paiiicipa:tion in 
the CERS system prior to July 1, 2003, KRS pays a percentage of the monthly contribution rate for 
insurance coverage based on the retired member's years of service and type of service. Non-hazardous 
members receive a contribution subsidy for only the member's health insurance premium. 

Percentage of contribution ranges from 0% for less than 4 years of service to l 00% for 20 years or more 
of service. For members who initiated pai·ticipation in the CERS system after JuJy 1, 2003 until August 
31, 2008, members must have 120 months of service in a state-administered retirement system to q w:'llify 
for participation in the KR health plans. Members who began partic'ipating with KRS on or after 
September 1, 2008, must have 180 months of service upon Tetirement to participate in the KR health 
plans. Non-hazardous retirees receive $ 10 toward the monthly premium for each fuil year of service. 

Funding policy: ER allocates a portion of the employer contributions to the health insurance benefit 
plans. For the 2016 measurement period CERS allocated 4.73% of the 18.68% actuarially required 
contribution rate paid by employers for funding the healthcare benefit. In addition, 1.00% of the 
contributions by employees hired after September 1, 2008 are allocated to the health insurance plan. 

Contributions: The District's total payroll for employees covered under CERS for the years ending June 
30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 was $2,651,634, $2,739,498 and $2,641,239, respectively. The District's 
contributions to CERS for the years ending June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015 were $125,422, $129,578, 
ai1d $124,931, respectively, and equaled the actually required contributions for the year. 

Funded status: The unfunded medical benefit obligation of the CERS, based upon the entry age normal 
cost method, as of June 30, 2016 was as follows: 
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Total medical benefit obligation 
Net position available for benefits 
at actuarial value 
Unfunded medical benefit obligation 

OOO's omitted 
$ 2,988,121 

(2 .079 ,811) 
$ 908.3 1 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to CERS 

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. 
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016. The total pension liability used to ca lcLdate 
the net pension liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 201 6. An expected total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2016 was detemiined using standard roll-fonvard techniques. The 
Dist1ict's proportion of the net pension liability was based on contributions to CERS during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2016. At June 30 2016, the District's proportion was 0.114126%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $835,000. At June 30, 
2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Defe1Ted 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resources of Resources 
Differences between expected 

actual experience $ 24,532 $ 
Changes of assumptions 297,672 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earnings on investments 528,256 
Changes in prop01tion and differences 

between District contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 159,659 

District contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 369,903 

$ l i3 8Q,Q22 $ 

The $369,903 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Deferred outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual earnings on plan 
investments are netted and amortized over a closed five year period. Other amounts rep01ied as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are amortized over the 
average service life of all members. These will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
2018 $ 389,063 
2019 284,559 
2020 219,089 
2021 117 408 

$ 1 lQ l 0,11 2 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for CERS was dete1mined by applying 
procedures to the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2016, used the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 

Valuation Date 
Experience Study 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 

June 30, 2016 
July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013 
Entry Age N01mal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
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Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Inflation 
Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return 

27 years 
5-year smoothed market 
3.25% 
4.00%, average, including inflation 
7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 

inflation 
The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale 
BB to 2013 (multipli ed by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and 
beneficiaries, tbe mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mo1tality Table projected with Scale 
BB to 2013 (set back I year for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled 
Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after 
disability retirement. There is some margin in the cun-ent mortality tables for possible future 
improvement in mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience 
investigation is conducted. 

The long-tenn e pected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies 
prepared every five years for C ~RS. The most recent analysis, perfom1ed for the period covering fiscal 
years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 20 14. Several factors are considered in 
evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption including long-teim bistotical data, estimates inherent 
in current market data, and a log-no1mal clistribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future real rates of return ( expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by 
the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long­
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. 

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retw·n for each major asset class, 
as provided by CER s investment consultant, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Combined Equity 
Combined Fixed Income 
Real Return (Diversified 

Inflation Strategies) 
Real Estate 
Absolute Return (Diversified 

Hedge Funds) 
Private Equity 
Cash Equivalent 

Target Allocation 
44.0% 
19.0% 

10.0% 
5.0% 

10.0% 
10.0% 
2.0% 

100.0% 

Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

5.40% 
1.50% 

3.50% 
4.50% 

4.25% 
8.50% 

-0.25% 

Discounf Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and 
employers will be made at statutOLy contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were 
calculated us:ing the long-term assumed investment return of 7.50%. The long-tenn assrnned investment 
rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount 
rate: The following presents the District's prop01tionate share of the net pension Liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.50% as well a what the District's prop01tionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if il were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 
I-percentage-point higher 8.50%) U1an the cu1Tent rate: 

District's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(6.50%) 

CmTent 
discount rate 

(7.50%) 

1% 
Increase 
(8.50%) 

$ 7,002,000 $ 5,619,137 $ 4,433,000 
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Pension plan.fiduciary net position: Detailed infonnalion about the pension plan's fiduciary net position 
is available in the para:tely issued CERS financial report which is publically available at 
h.ttps://kyret.ky.gov. 

Payables to the pension plan: At June 30, 2017, there was $13,323 in payables to CERS. 

(9) INSURANCE AND RELATED ACTIVITIES 

The District is exposed to various forms of loss of assets associated with the risks of foe, personal 
liability theft, vehicular accidents, errors and omissions, fiduojary responsibility, etc. Each of these 
risk areas is covered through the purchase of conunercial insurance. The District had purchased 
certain policies, which are retrospectively rated, which include worker's compensation insurance. 

(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The District receives funding from Federal and State government agencies. These funds are to be 
used for designated purposes only. For Goverrunent agency grants, if based on the grantor's review 
the funds are considered not to have been used for the intended purpose, the granters may request a 
refund of monies advanced, or refuse to reimburse the District for its disbursements. 

The amount of such future refunds and umeimbursed disbursements, if any, is not expected to be 
significant. Continuation of the District's grant programs is predicated upon the grantors' satisfaction 
that the funds provided are being spent as intended and the granters' intent to continue their 
programs. 

The District has outstanding construction commitments of approximately $5,000,000 at June 30, 
2017 for the High School Renovation. 

(11) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injmies to employees; and natural disasters. To obtain insurance for 
workers' compensation errors and omissions, and general liability coverage, the District participates in 
the Kentucky Employer's Mutual Insurance Fund. These public entity risk pools operate as common risk 
management and insurance programs for all school districts and other tax supported educational agencies 
of Kentucky who are members of the Kentucky School Boards Association. The District pays an annual 
-premium to each ft.md for coverage. Contributions to the Workers' Compensation Fund are based on 
_premium rates established by such fund in conjunction with the excess insurance carrier, subject to 
claims experience modifications and a group discount amount. Dividends may be declared, but are not 
payable L1ntil twenty-four (24) months after the expiration of the self-insurance term. The Liability 
Insw-ance Fund pays insurance premiums of the participating members established by the insurance 
carrier. The Trust can terminate coverage if it is unable to obtain acceptable excess general liability 
coverage and for any reason by giving ninety (90) days notice. 1n the event the Trust tenninated 
coverage, any amount remaining in the Fund (after payment of OJJeratiooal and administrative costs and 
claims for which coverage was provided) would be returned to the member on a pro rata basis. 

The District purchases unemployment insurance through the Kentucky School Boards Insurance 
Trust Unemploy1Jlent Compensation Fund; however, risk has not been transferred to such fund. In 
addition, the District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 
tlu·ee fiscal years. 

(12) COBRA 

Under COBRA, employers are mandated to notify terminated employees of available continuing 
insurance coverage. It is managem nt's opinion that the District is in compliance with the COBRA 
requirements. 
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(13) TRANSFER OF FUNDS 

The following transfers were made during the year: 

Type 
Operating 
Operating 
Operating 
Capital 
Operating 
Capital 

From Fund 
General 
Building (FSPK) 
Capital (SEEK)_ 
Capital (SEEK) 
Building (FSPK) 
Building (FSPK) 

(14) ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

To Fund 
Special Revenue 
Debt Service 
General 
Construction 
General 
Construction 

Purpose 
Technology Match 
Debt Service 
Operating Expenses 
Construction 
Operating Expenses 
Construction 

$ 
Amount 

39,147 
820,031 
260,000 
28,294 
40,000 

265,977 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, total payments of $4,245,190 were made by the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky on behalf of the District for life insurance, health insurance, and KTRS matching and 
administrative fees and SFCC debt service. These payments were recognized as on-behalf payments 
and are recorded in the appropriate revenue and expense account on the Statement of Activities and 
the Government Funds Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The On­
Behalf payments are not budgeted in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balance - Budget and Actual. 

On-behalf payments at June 30, 2017 consisted of the following: 

Teacher Retirement 
Health Insurance 
Life Insurance 
Admin Fee 
BRA/Dental/Vision 
Federal Reimbursement 
Technology 
Debt Service 

Total on-behalf 

(15) FUND DEFICIT 

$ 1,321,412 
2,077,995 

3,632 
28,860 

151,287 
(153,535) 

57,647 
757,892 

$ 4.245.190 

As of June 30, 2017, the Child Care Fund had a negative net position of $18,842. This deficit resulted 
from the recording of the fund's proportionate share of the net pension liability in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The General Fund 
provides transfers to cover deficit balances; however, this is done when cash is needed rather than 
when accruals occur. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



BATI-I COUNTY SCI-IOOL DISTRICT 
SCI-IEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF Tl-IE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE JO, 2017 

Reporting Fiscal Year Reporting Fiscal Year 
(MeRs1m::incnt Date) (Me:1surumcnt Date) 

COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

Disuict's propo,tion oflhe net pension linbility 

Dis11ici's proportionnte share of the net pension liability 

Disuici's covered-employee pnyroll 

District's propo11ionnte share of the net pension liability 

cts a percentage of its covered-employee pnyroll 

PIRn fidnciRry net position as a percentni;c of the total 

pension liability 

KENTUCKY TEACHER'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 

District's proportion of the net pension liability 

District's proportionate shnrc of the net pension liability 

State's propo1tio11atc sl1are of the net pension liability associnted 

with the District 
Totnl 

District's cove,ed-employee payroll 

District's propo11io11ntc share of the net pension liability 

as n percentnge of its cO\:ercd-employee priyroll 

Pinn riducinry net position as R pe1centnge of the total 

pension liability 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Note: Schedule is intended to show infomrnlion for the Inst 10 riscal yenr·s. Additional years will 

be displayed as they become available. 
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2017 2016 

(2016) (2015) 

0.114% 

5,619, 137 

2,651,634 

211.912% 

55.500% 

0.272% 

80,308,734 
80,308,734 

9,239,972 

0.000% 

35 220% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

0.112% 

4.804,458 

2,641 ,239 

181.902% 

59 970% 

0.271% 

62,972,694 
62,972,694 

8,831 ,710 

0.000% 

42.490% 

Reporting Fiscal Year 
(Measurement Date) 

2015 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(2014) 

0.106% 

3.425,000 

2.421,900 

141.418% 

66.800% 

0.269% 

55,311,681 
55,311,681 

8,435,447 

0.000% 

45.590% 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

COUNTY EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 
Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's contributions as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

KENTUCKY TEACHER'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM: 
Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution 

Contribution deficiency (excess) 

District's covered-employee payroll 

District's contributions as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

2017 2016 

$ 369.903 $ 340,237 

369.903 340,237 

$2,651,634 $2,739,498 

13.95% 12.42% 

$ $ 

$9,239,972 $9,015,981 

0.00% 0.00% 

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last IO fiscal years. Additional years will 
be displayed as they become available. 
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2015 2014 

$ 336.776 $ 332,783 

336.776 332.783 

$2,641,239 $2,421,900 

12.75% 13.74% 

$ $ 

$8,831,710 $8,435,447 

0.00% 0.00% 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

(1) CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS 

KTRS 

In the 2011 valuation and later, the expectation of retired life mortality was changed to the RP-2000 
Mortality Tables rather than the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table, which was used prior to 
2011. In the 2011 valuation, rates of withdrawal, retirement, disabi lity and mortality were adjusted 
to more closely reflect actual experience. In the 2011 valuation, the Board adopted an interest 
smoothing methodology to calculate liabilities for purposes of determining the actuarially 
determined contributions. 

CERS 

The following changes were made by the Kentucky Legislature and reflected in the valuation 
performed as of June 30, 2015: 

• The assumed investment rate ofreturn was decreased from 7.75% to7.50%. 
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%. 
• The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%. 
• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%. 
• The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table 

projected with Scale BB to 2013 (multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). 
• For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 

Combined Mortality Table projected witb Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). 
For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mo1iality Table projected with 
Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after disability 
retirement. 

• The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more 
accurately reflect experience. 

(2) METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN CALCULATIONS OF ACTUARIALLY 
DETERMINED CONTRIBUTIONS 

KTRS 

The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedul oJ employer contributions are calculated 
as of June 30, three years prior to the end of the fisca l year in which contributions are reported. The 
following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determin contribution, t·ates reported in the 
most recent year of that schedule: 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Inflation 
Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return 

Entry Age Normal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
30 years 
5-year smoothed market 
3.5% 
4.0% to 8.2%, including inflation 
7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 

inflation 

The actuarially ·detennined contribution rates are determined on a biennial basis beginning with the 
fiscal years ended 2016 and 2017 detem,ined as of July 1, 2015. The amortizalion period of the 
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unfunded liability has been reset as of July 1, 2013 to a closed 30-year period. The following actuarial 
methods and assumptions were used to determine contribution rates rep01ted in the most recent year of 
that schedule: 

Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization Period 
Asset Valuation Method 
Inflation 
Salary Increase 
Investment Rate of Return 

(3) CHANGES OF BENEFITS 

Entry Age Normal 
Level percentage of payroll, closed 
27 years 
5-year smoothed market 
3.25% 
4.00%, average, including inflation 
7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 

inflation 

There were no changes of benefit terms for KTRS or CERS. 
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SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
District Debt Non-Major 
Activity SEEK Construction Service Governmental 

Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds 
ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 69,089 $ 88,146 $ 20.380 $ $ 177,615 
Accounts receivable 

Total assets $ 69,089 $ 88, 146 $ 20.380 $ $ 177,615 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE: 
Liabi I ities: 

Accounts payable $ $ $ 14,500 $ $ 14,500 
Total liabilities 14,500 14,500 

Fund Balances: 
Restricted 88,146 5.880 94,026 
Committed 69,089 69.089 

Total fund balance 69,089 88,146 5,880 163. 115 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 69,089 $ 88,146 $ 20,380 $ $ 177,615 
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BATII COllNTY SCIIOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
District Debt Non-Major 
Activity SEEK Construction Service Governmental 

Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds 

REVENUES: 
From local sources -

Property taxes $ $ $ $ $ 
Other local revenues 75.488 75.488 

Interest income 20,007 20.007 
I ntergovernrnen tal - Slate !86,406 757,892 944,298 
Intergovernmental - Federal 

Total revenues 75 ,488 186,406 20,007 757,892 1,039,793 

EXPENDITURES : 
Current -

Instruction 87,614 87,614 

Student suppo11 services 228 228 
Instructional staff suppo11 services 11.7!6 11,716 
Student transportation 2,410 2,410 
Facilities acquisition and construction 502,859 502,859 
Debt service 1,642,165 1,642,165 
Total expenditures 101 ,968 502,859 1,642,165 2,246,992 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (26,480) 186,406 (482,852) (884,273) (1,207, 199) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) : 
Bond proceeds 6,445,000 6,445,000 
Payment to bond escrow agent (6,380,758) (6,380,758) 
Operating transfers in 294,271 820,031 1,114,302 
Operating transfers out (288,294) (288.294) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (288,294) 294,271 884,273 890,250 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (26,480) (IO 1,888) (188,581) (316,949) 

FUND BALANCE JUNE 30, 2016 95.569 190.034 194,461 480,064 

FUND BALANCE JUNE 30, 2017 $ 69.089 $ 88.146 $ 5.880 $ $ 163,115 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Total 
Other 

Child Care Preschool Proprietary 
Fund Fund Funds 

ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 13 ,086 $ !3,086 
Accounts receivable 12,767 12,767 

Total assets $ 12,767 $ 13,086 $ 25,853 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
Deferred outflows - pension related 46,797 46,797 

Total deferred outflows of resources 46,797 46,797 
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 59,564 $ 13,086 $ 72,650 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $ $ $ 
Due to other funds 2,929 2,929 
Net pension liability 75,477 75 ,477 

Total liabilities 78,406 78,406 

Net Position: 
Assigned 
Restricted (18,842) 13,086 (5,756) 

Total net position (18,842) 13,086 (5,756) 

Total liabilities and net position $ 59,564 $ 13 ,086 $ 72,650 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMBINING ST A TEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Child Care Preschool 
Fund Funds 

Operating revenues: 
Tuition from individuals $ 102,588 $ 12,560 
Revenue from local sources 35,332 

Revenue from state sources 
Total operating revenues 137,920 12,560 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and wages 98,025 
Employee benefits 63,967 
Materials and supplies 10,873 10,302 
Other operating expenses 925 3,294 

Total operating expenses 173,790 13,596 

Operating income (35,870) (1,036) 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Federal grants 6,785 
On-behalf payments 20,600 

Total nonoperating revenue 27,385 

Increase (decrease) in net position (8,485) (1,036) 

Net position, June 30, 2016 (10,357) 14,122 

Net position, June 30, 2017 $ l 8 842) $ 13 086 
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Total Other 
Proprietary 

Funds 

$ 115,148 
35,332 

150,480 

98,025 
63,967 
21,175 

4,219 
187386 

(36,906) 

6,785 
20,600 
27,385 

(9,521) 

3 765 

$ (5 756 



Bath County High Schoool 
Bath County Middle School 
Owingsville Elementary 
Crossroads Elementary 

Cash Balance 
June 30, 2016 

$ 135,167 $ 

36,100 
16,389 
25,028 

$ 212,684 $ 

BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Cash Balance 
Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2017 

265,857 $ 264,282 $ 136,742 $ 
I 05,097 99,820 41.377 
58,788 56,399 18,778 
61 ,887 67,305 19,610 

491.629 $ 487.806 $ 216,507 $ 
===== = 
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Deposits 
Held in 

Custody for 
Accounts Accounts Students 

Receivable Payable June 30.2017 
$ $ 136,742 

41.377 
18,778 

- 19,610 
$ $ 216.507 



BATH COllNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FllN[)S 

BATH COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Deposits 
Held in 

Cash Cash Accounts Custody for 

Balance Balance Receivable Students 

June 30, Disburse- June 30, (Accounts June 30, 

2016 Receiets ments 2017 Pa:i:able) 2017 

General $ 7,237 $ 11,693 $ 7.234 11,696 $ $ 11,696 

Guidance 2,901 716 736 2,881 2,881 

Student Government 120 114 234 234 

Talented and gifted 673 673 673 

Senior trip 346 49,488 48,326 1,508 1,508 

After Prom 792 5,915 5,684 1,023 1,023 

Faculty 1,987 1,757 2,277 1,467 1,467 

Beta Club 2,402 5,810 5,294 2,918 2,918 

FBLA 3,268 6,755 6,124 3,899 3,899 

FCCLA 3,164 6,150 6,238 3,076 3,076 

FFA 2,949 1,640 1,300 3,289 3,289 

FEA 328 284 264 348 348 

TSA 361 150 511 511 

FCA 130 130 130 

AG-Science 4,017 35 4,052 4,052 

Art 561 2,300 1,934 927 927 

Band 296 7,144 6,780 660 660 

Drama 459 459 459 

Strategic Gaming 318 600 895 23 23 

Hort 30,589 12,613 26,893 16,309 16,309 

Journalism 8,049 1,285 1,440 7,894 7,894 

World Language 1,045 1.043 2 2 

Health/Science 415 4,622 5,001 36 36 

Humanities 3 3 3 

Consumer Science 45 229 229 45 45 

Language Arts 84 1,075 830 329 329 

Athletics 17,759 58,601 54,065 22,295 22,295 

Baseball 2,829 2,350 3,754 1,425 1,425 

Boys basketball 772 2,250 2,344 678 678 

Cheerleaders 1,860 500 1.928 432 432 

Boys Cross Country 1,330 2,041 1.335 2,036 2,036 

Football 2,380 1.963 3.717 626 626 

Girls Cross Country 1,310 2,042 1,335 2,017 2,017 

Girls Basketball 430 2,192 1,221 1,401 1,40 I 

G iris Softball 4,047 10,254 7,136 7,165 7,165 

Girls Track 1,800 4,948 2.971 3,777 3,777 

Boys Golf 175 665 575 265 265 

Girls Golf 1,109 500 772 837 837 

Bass Fishing 1,550 534 1,016 1,016 

Boys Soccer 134 1,493 504 1,123 I, 123 

Girls Soccer 477 1,659 942 1,194 1,194 

Boys Track 119 3,517 1,864 1,772 1,772 

Girls Volleyball 898 500 763 635 635 

Junior Class 4,439 23,056 21,930 5,565 5,565 

Sophomore Class 1,427 8,693 8,904 1,216 1,216 

Senior Class 12,905 12,416 13,871 11,450 11,450 

Freshman Class 3,247 3,247 

Youth Service Center 6,686 2,048 4,638 4,638 

Backpack 787 787 787 
$ 135,167 $ 265,857 $ 264,282 $ 136,742 $ $ 136,742 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCIIEDl/LE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR Tll E YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Federal Grnntnr/Pnss-Through GmntoffProgrnm Title 
U.S. Dcpartmonl af Education 
Passed through State Department of Education: 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Title I Grants, School Improvement (Part Al 

Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 
Special Education Grants to States - IDEA, Part B 
Special Education Grants lo Stales - IDEA, Part B 
Special Education Preschool Grants 
Special Education Preschool Grants 

Title VI - Rural & Low Income 
Title VI - Rural & Low Income 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 
Improving Teacher Quality Stale Grants 

Vocational Education Basic Grants lo States 
Vocational Education Basic Grants to States 

Total U.S. Department of Education 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 
Pass-through Slate Department of Education: 
Cash Assistance: 

State Administrative Expense 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 

Child Nutrition Cluster: 
National School Lunch Program 
National School Lunch Program 
Summer Food Service Program for Children 
Summer Food Service Program lor Children 
Summer Food Service Program for Children 
School Breakfast Program 
School Breakfast Program 

Cash Assistance Subtotal 

Non-Cash Assistance (Food Distribution): 
National School Lunch Program 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 
Total U S. Department of Agriculture 

Total expenditures of Federal awards 

• Denotes major program 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

84 010 
84 010 
84.010 

84 027 
84.027 
84 173 
84. 173 

84.358 
84.358 

84.367 
84.367 
84.367 

84 .048 
84.048 

10.560 
10.558 
10.558 
10.558 
10.558 

10.555 
10.555 
10.559 
10.559 
10.559 
10.553 
10.553 

10.555 

Pass-Th rough 
Grantor's 
Number 

310002-14 
310002-15 
310002-16 

3810002-15 
3810002-16 
3800002-15 
3800002-16 

3140002-15 
3140002-16 

3230002-15 
3230003-15 
3230002-16 

3710002-15 
3710002-16 

7700001-15 
7800016-16 
7800016-17 
7790021-16 
7790021-!7 

7750002-16 
7750002-17 
7690024-16 
7740023-16 
7740023-17 
7760005-16 
7760005-17 

4000810 

$ 

Program 
or Award 
Amounl 

787,685 
872.706 
857,099 

431 ,034 
447,461 

29,619 
29,619 

40,841 
43,698 

238,178 
238,178 
113,685 

30,703 
28,030 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule 
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Passed 
through to 

Subrecipienls Expcnd11 urcs 

$ $ 3,175 • 
287,719 • 
587,302 • 
878,196 

60, 196 
352,334 

5,922 
23,098 

441.550 

3,586 
41.757 
45,343 

84,650 
86,964 
61,502 

233, J 16 

1,975 
26,942 
28,917 

1,627.122 

124 
152 
750 

5.759 
6,785 

197,840 
710,583 

792 
7,626 

24,322 
111,600 
385,611 

I ,438,374 

83,768 
I ,522, 142 
1,528,927 

$ $ 3,156,049 



BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONCLUDED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

NOTE A· BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the Bath County School District under the 
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Ti I tie 2 U.S. Code of Feclera/ lle/!,r,/t,/icm., Part 200, / lni/im11 Adminislmtive lleq11ire111e111.,, ( 'osl l'm1c1ple.1· a11d Audi! 
//e,111iremen1.1· /i1r Fedeml Award, (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Bath 
County School District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash Oows of the District 

NOTE B • SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting Such expenditures are recognized lollowing the 
cost principles contained in 0MB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State and Local Governments, or the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursemen t Negative amounts shown on the schedule 
represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity 
identifying numbers are presented where available. 

NOTE C • FOOD DISTRIBUTION 

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and disbursed. At June 30, 2017, the organization had total 
inventory of$4,04 I. 

NOTE D • INDIRECT COST RA TES 

The District has not elected to use the JO percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance 
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INDEPENDE T AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORl\tIED IN ACCORDANCE '-''ITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Kentucky State Committee for 
School Distlict Audits 

Members of the Board of Education 
Bath County School Distlict 
Owingsville, Kentucky 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United tates and the audit requirements prescribed by the Kentucky 
State Committee for School District Audits in the Auditor Responsibilities and State Compliance 
Requirements sections contained in the Kentucky PubLic School Districts' Audit Contract and 
Requirements, the financial statements of the govemmeutaJ activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining frtnd information of the Bath County School Distlict (the 
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which coUectively comprise the District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon 
dated October 19, 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfo1ming our audit of the .financial statements, we considered the District's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of e"'pressing our opinion on the financial statements but noi for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contml does not allow 
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
dete t and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weaknes is a deficiency or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such Lhal there is a reasonable pos~ibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will no~ b prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
sign{ficant deficiency is a deficiency or a combin:ation of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by -those charged with 
governance. 

Our consi.deration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify a1J deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, duling our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies i11 internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Pikeville, KY Cold Spring, KY Cincinnati, OH 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Dist:Iict' s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated October 
19,2017. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an i11tegral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standard'> in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

I<~ 
Ashland, Kentucky 
October 19, 2017 

~~>f5C 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Kentucky State Committee for 
School District Audits 

Members of the Board of Education 
Bath County School District 
Owingsville, Kentucky 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Bath County School District's compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
District's major federal programs for the year ended Jw1e 30, 2017. Bath County School District' s major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs_ 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Bath County School District's major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government AudUing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and the audit requirements prescribed by the 
Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits in the Auditor Responsibilities and State 
Compliance Requirements sections contained in the Kentucky Public School Districts' Audit Contract 
and Requirements . Those standards and the Unifonn Gui.dance require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements refe1Ted to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occu1Ted. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Bath County School District' s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Bath County School 
District's compliance_ 

Pikeville, KY Cold Spring, KY Cincinnati, OH 



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In om opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with th types of compliance requirements 
ref erred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of Bath County School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements refened to above. In planning 
,md performing our audit of compliance we considered the District's internal contr l over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program 
to detennine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and repmt on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Bath County Schoo) District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompli.ance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control a, er compliance is a 
deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented or detected and coITected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance Tequiremenl of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet in1portant enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of-internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this rep01t is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~

0

~~~,Psc 
October 19, 2017 
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(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

BA TH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 

Internal Control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X 

Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified? yes X 

Noncompliance material to the financial 
statements noted? yes X 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X 

Significant deficiency(ies) 
identified? yes X 

Type of auditor's report issued on 
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

Any auctit findfogs disclosed that are 
required to be reported in_ accordance 
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X 

Identification of major federal programs: 

Title I Grants (84.010) 

Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B Programs: $ 750,000 

The District qualified as a low risk auditee X yes 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None noted in the current year. 

FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

There were no findings in the current year. 
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BATH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

There were no findings in the prior year. 
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BA TH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

No corrective action plan needed in the current year. 
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[jg elley lg alloway 
~mith [§oolsby, PSC 
Certified Public Accountants and Advisors 

Kentucky State Committee for School District Audits 
Members of the Board of Education 
Bath County School Distiict 
Owingsville, Kentucky 

1200 Corporate Court• P. 0. Box 990 • Ashland, Kentucky 41105 

• Phone (606) 329-1811 (606) 329-1171 • Fax (606) 329-8756 (606) 325-0590 

• Web www.kgsgcpa.com Member of A\\\l\.\?i.\c,am. 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Bath County School District (the 
"District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of matters that are an opportunity for strengthening internal 
controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments 
and suggestions regarding this matter. This letter does not affect our report dated October 19, 2017, on the 
financial statements of the District. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed 
these comments and suggestions with various District personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in 
further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in 
implementing the recommendations. 

;:_~ )j~~~,-rsc 
Ashland, Kentucky 
October 19, 2017 

Pikeville, KY Cold Spring, KY Cincinnati, OH 



BA TH COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT LETTER POINTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

2017-1 Bath County High School & Bath County Middle School Booster Clubs 

Statement of Condi.ti on: We noted that booster club semi-annual and Annual Financial Reports were not 
being submitted to Lhe high school or middle school oo a timely basis. 

Criteria fo r Condition: Semi-annual and Annual .•inancial Reports of each of the booster clubs should be 
prepared and submitted to the school within 30 days of month-end. 

Cause of Condition: Oversight. 

Effect of the Condition: Semi-annual and Annual Financial Reports of the booster clubs were not 
available on a timely basis. 

Recommendation of the Condition: We recommend that more care be taken to ensure that the semi­
annual and Annual Financial Reports are prepared on a timely basis. 

Management Response: Board Pol icy 04.312 addresses all the requirements fm semi-annual and Anmial 
Financial Reports for submission to the schools. The District shall reinforce the guideJjnes wi thin the 
policy. Booster groups will be communicated with regularly to receive the proper 1·eports on a timely 
basis. 

2017-2 Owingsville Elementary Credit Card Sign In/Out Log 

Statement of Condition: We noted two instances in which the credit card log was not signed by the 
person witnessing the return of the card. 

Criteria for Condition: Form F-SA-13 (Credit Card Sign In/Out Log) required by the 2013 Redbook. 

Cause of Condition: Oversight. 

Effect of the Condition: Credit cards can potentially be lost or stolen if custody is not properly 
maintained and documented. 

Recommendation of the Condition: We recommend that more care be taken to ensure that all credit cards 
are properly logged back in upon return. 

Management Response: Board Po licy, 04.31, addresses the authori ty/admin istration of board credit card 
processes. The District sha ll reinforce the guidelines within the policy and will ensure proper log in/out 
procedures of the cred it ards . 

tatus of Prior Year Managem.ent Points 
The prior year conditions have been implemented and corrected except 20 16-1 was repeated as 20 17-1 
above. The Superintendent is the person responsible for initi ation of the optional correctjve action plan 
fo r the above cond·itions which w ill be implemented immediately. he corrective action plan is the 
management response for each condition. 
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